
DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD MEETING 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2022 

9:00 A.M. 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

ONE VISITORS CENTER CIRCLE 
MANTEO, NC 27954 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

I. Call to Order    
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence  
 
III. Approval of Agenda 
     
IV. Approval of Minutes from the January 20, 2022 Meeting 
 
V. Public Comments   
 
VI. Chair/Steering Committee Report 
 
VII. Budget & Finance Report  
     
VIII. Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Updates  
 
IX.       Old Business 
 
X.   New Business 
  
XI.       Board Member Comments 
   
XII. Set Date, Time, and Place of Next Meetings 
 
XIII. Adjournment 
   
\ 
     
 



January 20, 2022 Dare County Tourism Board  1 

RECORD OF MINUTES 
DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 20, 2022 
9:00 A.M. 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 
MANTEO, NC 27954 

 
 

ATTENDING:   
In-Person: Gray Berryman, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, David Hines, Leo Holland, Bobby 
Owens, Dennis Robinson, Monica Thibodeau, and Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel.  
 
Via GoToMeeting: Mark Ballog, Jamie Chisholm, Ivy Ingram, and Mike Siers. 
 
EXCUSED ABSENCE: Ervin Bateman 
 
STAFF (in person): 
Lee Nettles, Executive Director  
Diane Bognich, Director of Administration  
Amy Wood, Clerk to the Board/Administrative Specialist  
Lorrie Love, Tourism Sales and Events Manager  
Aaron Tuell, Public Relations Manager 
Stephanie Hall, Senior Content Coordinator 
 
OTHERS ATTENDING: 
Via GoToMeeting: Dave Hallac, Superintendent, Outer Banks Group, National Park Service. 
In-Person: None. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  The Board then recited the pledge of allegiance, followed 
by a moment of silence.  
 
The Clerk swore in the following Dare County Tourism Board Appointees:   
 Gray Berryman, Outer Banks Association of REALTORSÒ 

Tim Cafferty, Member at Large 
David Hines, Town of Kitty Hawk 

 
The following members were sworn in prior to the meeting as they would not be physically present at the 
January meeting: 
 
Mark Ballog, Outer Banks Restaurant Association 
Ervin Bateman, Dare County Commissioners 
Ivy Ingram, Town of Kill Devil Hills 
Mike Siers, Town of Nags Head 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 20, 2022 Dare County Tourism Board  2 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS: Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel, presented the Nominating Committee's 
recommended slate of officers, as follows:  
 

• Chair: Tim Cafferty 
• Vice-Chair: Monica Thibodeau 
• Secretary: Jamie Chisholm 
• Treasurer: Ervin Bateman 
• Assistant Treasurer: Ivy Ingram 

 
Legal Counsel then called for nominations from the floor for the positions of Chair, Vice Chair, 
Secretary, Treasurer, and Assistant Treasurer.  Hearing none, Mr. Charalambous moved to close 
nominations.  Second by Mr. Owens. 
 

Yes: Mark Ballog, Gray Berryman, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, 
David Hines, Leo Holland, Ivy Ingram, Bobby Owens, Dennis Robinson, Mike Siers, and Monica 
Thibodeau.  

 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (12-0).  
 

Mr. Charalambous moved to accept the slate of candidates as presented.  Second by Mr. Robinson.  
 

Yes: Mark Ballog, Gray Berryman, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, 
David Hines, Leo Holland, Ivy Ingram, Bobby Owens, Dennis Robinson, Mike Siers, and Monica 
Thibodeau.  

 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (12-0).  

 
Legal Counsel then turned the meeting over to the Chair.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Ms. Thibodeau moved to approve the agenda. Second by Mr. 
Charalambous. There was no discussion.  
 

Yes: Mark Ballog, Gray Berryman, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, 
David Hines, Leo Holland, Ivy Ingram, Bobby Owens, Dennis Robinson, Mike Siers, and Monica 
Thibodeau.  

 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (12-0).  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Mr. Holland moved to approve the meeting minutes from December 16, 
2021 meeting.   Second by Mr. Owens. There was no discussion.  
 

Yes: Mark Ballog, Gray Berryman, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, 
David Hines, Leo Holland, Ivy Ingram, Bobby Owens, Dennis Robinson, Mike Siers, and Monica 
Thibodeau.  

 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (12-0).  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Superintendent Hallac reviewed happenings in the Cape Hatteras National 
Seashore.  There were no further public comments made. No written comments were received.  
 



January 20, 2022 Dare County Tourism Board  3 

BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT:  Diane Bognich reviewed the meals and occupancy receipts 
received.  Receipts for fiscal year 2020-2021 are up 16.69% compared to 2019-2020 actual receipts. 
 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU UPDATES: The Chair congratulated Lee Nettles on his 
appointment to the North Carolina Travel & Tourism Board.  
  
Lee Nettles: 

• Welcomed new Board members 
• Noted the opportunity to focus on long range planning regarding tourism in Dare County and 

what those plans might entail (housing, transportation, etc.) 
• Noted that the Bureau was a sponsor of a Chamber program bringing in a speaker in April. Doug 

Griffiths, author of 13 Ways to Kill Your Community will speak in April and as a part of the 
sponsorship, the Board has an opportunity to work with Mr. Griffiths.  

• An Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Partner webinar series continues with a new webinar on 
February 3, 2022 

• Reviewed the marketing dashboard and visitation reports 
• Provided a brief overview of marketing efforts and how these efforts might change moving 

forward, particularly with television.  
 
Aaron Tuell noted progress on a video highlighting the African American Heritage Trail areas on 
Roanoke Island, as well as other media efforts promoting the Outer Banks. 
 
Lorrie Love reviewed group and consumer tradeshows and upcoming events held at the Soundside Event 
Site.  
 
OLD BUSINESS:  There was no old business before the Board. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  The Chair and Staff reviewed the following items: 
 

• Tourism Impact Grant Extension Request from the Town of Nags Head. 
The Town requested an extension to June 30, 2023 to create a skate park that the community will get the 
most use from and to seek additional grant funding from other entities for accessibility features.  
 
Ms. Thibodeau moved to grant an extension to the Town of Nags Head to June 30, 2023.  Second by Mr. 
Charalambous.  
 

Yes: Mark Ballog, Gray Berryman, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, 
David Hines, Leo Holland, Ivy Ingram, Bobby Owens, Dennis Robinson, Mike Siers, and Monica 
Thibodeau.  

 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (12-0).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 20, 2022 Dare County Tourism Board  4 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS (continued): 
 

• Resolution 2022-1 DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 
RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION SCHEDULES FOR LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 

 
WHEREAS, the Dare County Tourism Board is a North Carolina Public Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, Division of 

Archives and Records defines “Public Record” as any document, paper, letter, map, book, 
photograph, film, sound recording, magnetic or other tape, electronic data-processing record, 
artifact, or other documentary material, despite physical form or characteristics, made or received 
pursuant to law or ordinance in connection with the transaction of public business by any agency of 
North Carolina government or its subdivisions; and 

 
WHEREAS, without a records retention program, public records can accumulate, causing 

the need for additional storage space, and without a schedule for disposal, valuable documents can 
be mistakenly discarded; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Dare County Tourism Board currently uses the 2019 version of the Records 
Retention and Disposition Schedule; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

1) Adopts the revised version of the Records Retention and Disposition Schedules General Records 
Schedule for Local Government Agencies, a copy of which are on file in the office of the Board 
Clerk; and 

2) Deems the appropriate time to retain all records to be discarded “when Administrative value ends” 
as a period of no less than three (3) years; and 

3) The Dare County Tourism Board will continue to follow schedules as they are revised and released 
by North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, Division of Archives and 
Records, Government Records Section.  

 
Mr. Owens moved to approve Resolution 2022-1. Second by Mr. Charalambous.  
 

Yes: Mark Ballog, Gray Berryman, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, 
David Hines, Leo Holland, Ivy Ingram, Bobby Owens, Dennis Robinson, Mike Siers, and Monica 
Thibodeau.  

 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (12-0).  
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:  The Chair and Board members welcomed the new members. Mr. 
Berryman spoke about the importance of long-term planning.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 20, 2022 Dare County Tourism Board  5 

 
SET DATE, TIME, AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING:   

• The Board set their meeting schedule for the third Thursday of each month at 9 a.m. in Curtis 
Creech Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC   

 
• The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 17, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. in Curtis Creech 

Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC (virtual 
and in-person options available). 

 
The Chair asked if there was any further business before the Board. Hearing none, the Chair adjourned 
the meeting at 10:10 a.m. 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
Clerk, Dare County Tourism Board 



$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

$140,000,000

$160,000,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2018 7,115,084 5,205,555 9,356,430 18,054,916 32,964,383 94,643,779 134,391,620 108,717,337 48,791,548 22,503,851 9,965,662 4,706,348
2019 6,272,045 6,004,609 9,370,541 22,183,138 36,428,842 102,003,266 110,890,945 138,805,084 45,403,850 22,618,642 11,523,953 6,505,201
2020 8,223,680 6,788,236 3,538,436 715,316 28,192,673 103,467,906 152,256,684 139,737,864 63,775,711 41,364,509 17,053,031 11,266,628
2021 22,515,577 16,833,409 28,050,784 39,424,885 71,629,217 127,947,319 159,994,974 158,280,320 73,112,498 43,787,109 11,394,032 18,096,294

Occupancy Collections

Dec +61%
CYTD +34%



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2018 6,630,060 8,081,163 12,472,869 17,693,017 25,305,198 37,728,467 44,840,505 39,760,919 24,228,769 18,452,784 12,448,598 9,670,246
2019 9,232,116 7,938,346 13,993,067 20,152,467 27,895,551 39,212,117 47,545,995 44,023,260 24,552,170 19,796,005 12,708,341 10,994,527
2020 9,567,693 9,280,396 7,466,202 3,749,728 14,079,809 35,377,812 37,531,226 34,686,508 31,758,793 22,495,453 16,322,421 10,519,542
2021 10,669,210 9,647,064 17,851,725 26,101,925 36,273,162 48,603,545 55,983,285 45,615,512 38,713,169 29,131,584 17,621,266 15,637,654

Meals Collections

Dec 49%
CYTD 51%

























































1



2



3



4



5



6



7



TOURISM SALES & EVENTS | INDUSTRY RELATIONS ACTIVITY – FEBRUARY 2022 
 
 
Outer Banks Webinar Program: 
On February 3, 2022, Bureau staff and Brian Matson from TwoSix Digital hosted a 60-minute webinar 
with tips and tactics to help our local tourism and hospitality partners navigate upcoming challenges 
and changes to the world's most popular online marketing channels.  On February 15th at 10:00am 
OBVB Staff and Brian will be hosting a follow up “Fireside Chat” webinar to answer any questions 
covering topics from the Feb 3rd Digital Marketing Tips & Tactics webinar.  
 
               
 
Future Trade Show Dates and Locations:  
Staff is currently scheduled for the following in-person trade show and tourism conference: 

• February 13 – 15, 2022: Southeast Tourism Society’s Domestic Showcase, VA Beach, VA 
• March 20 – 22, 2022: Visit 365 Conference, Durham, NC 

               
 
The Soundside Event Site:   
Attached is the current 2022 Events Calendar for the Soundside Event Site for your review. Currently 
there are 10 events scheduled for 2022. Staff continues to work with these events to help them 
navigate the application process with Town of Nags Head staff.  
               
 
Request for Proposals: 
 
The Bureau sent out the following request for proposal recently to our industry partners:  
 

• 95th Civil Affairs Brigade | GEMS Pillar Conference, April 29 – May 1, 2022, 55 rooms, meeting 
space, group meals  

 
               
 
Restaurant Off-Season Hours:  
The Bureau continues to update our Winter restaurant hours. 
This list can be found on the homepage or at the top of the 
www.outerbanks.org/restaurants.  Please share with your 
front-line staff.  
 
 
 
 
 



Name of Event Date of Event Site Reserved

Outer Banks Bike Week Thursday, April 20 - Sunday, April 23, 2022 Wednesday, April 19 - Sunday, April 23, 2022

OBX Rod and Custom Festival Friday, May 6 and Saturday, May 7, 2022 Thursday, May 5 - Sunday, May 8, 2022

Dare2Care OBX Shred Fest Saturday, May 21, 2022 Friday, May 20 - Monday, May 23, 2022

Soundside Fun Fair Thursday, June 9 - Sunday, June 12, 2022 Tuesday, June 7 - Monday, June 13 2022

HIS Generation Concert Wednesday, June 15, 2022 Tuesday, June 14 - Wednesday, June 16, 2022

Sumospeed Beach Bash Saturday, September 17, 2022 Saturday, September 17, 2022

OBX Fall Bike Fest Friday, September 23 - Saturday, September 24, 2022 Thursday, September 22 - Saturday, September 24, 2022

OBX Rod and Custom Fall 
Festival   

Friday, September 30 - Saturday, October 1, 2022 Thursday, September 29 - Sunday, October 2, 2022

OBX Jeep Invasion Friday, October 7 - Sunday, October 9, 2022 Thursday, October 6 - Sunday, October 9, 2022

Outer Banks Seafood Festival Saturday, October 15, 2022 Tuesday, October 11 - Monday, October 17, 2022

Outer Banks Brewtag Saturday, October 22, 2022 Wednesday, October 19 - Tuesday, October 25, 2022

2022 Soundside Event Site Schedule 



THE OUTER BANKS PROJECT 
 
PUBLIC RELATIONS REPORT: February 2022 
 
SOCIAL MEDIA - SPECIAL PROJECTS 
 
Black History Month | Feb 2022 - The Outer Banks Visitors Bureau partnered with content provider 
Caleb Owolabi of 30 to 300 Productions, LLC to produce a serial of social media videos highlighting 
Dare County’s vibrant African American heritage, promoting a stronger appreciation and visitation 
to Roanoke Island’s cultural sites. The content campaign went live this month on social media and 
components of the video series will live on our website to help travelers to the OBX plan. 
 
African American Experience of Northeast North Carolina | Feb 2022 - Aaron serves on the both 
the Product and Marketing Committees of the six county heritage trail that is jointly promoted as 
the NCBlackHeritageTour.com Aaron worked on a Dare County itinerary of Outer Banks trail sites 
that can be shared online.  
 
EARNED MEDIA - IN DEVELOPMENT 
 
Luxury Magazine | Spring/Summer 2022 - Staff worked with writer Larry Olmsted for an in-market 
visit to Dare County, who wrote an article for Luxury magazine, the b-annual periodical distributed 
to premium MasterCard customers. The story will feature the Outer Banks as a premier billfishing 
destination available to its subscription base in May 2022. 
 
Family RV’ing | Summer 2022 - The PR team is providing assistance for a journalist visit by Craig 
Jones and Jo Matyas to develop an article in the official magazine of the Family Motor Coach 
Association, with huge reach in the US and Canada. They’ll be reviewing three different campsites 
to paint a picture of what the Outer Banks offers for those researching an OBX camping trip.  
 
GoGlobehopper | Summer 2022 - The PR team is providing visual assets to the travel media 
website GoGlobehopper.com to assist with a travel video promoting the Outer Banks. Some of 
their social media videos featuring other destinations get well over 100K views. 
 
CONTENT PARTNERSHIPS 
 
Julie Suman: 
 
OuterBanks.org | Jan 2022 - “Birds Of A Feather Meet On The Outer Banks” https://bit.ly/34QHd5y 
OuterBanks.org | Jan 2022 - “Tick Your Winter Birding List” https://bit.ly/3rFSMWa 
 
Caz + Craig Makepeace - yTravelBlog: 
 
OuterBanks.org | Jan 2022 - “The Land Of Beginnings Historical Walking Tour” https://bit.ly/34IQvAk 
OuterBanks.org | Jan 2022 - “Birdwatching Is Such A Memorable Experience” https://bit.ly/3GyRXlX 
OuterBanks.org | Jan 2022 - “Take A Winter Vacation To The Outer Banks” https://bit.ly/338yrz4 
 
MARKETPLACES 
 
Southeast Tourism Society | Feb 13-15, 2022 - Aaron is attending this combination group sales and 
public relations marketplace for association member tour operators and both group and leisure 
outlet journalists living or working in the region. We’ll share our community’s readiness. 


	AGENDA 2 17 22
	MINUTES 12022
	Budget Finance January
	b&F file1
	B&F File2
	B&F File3

	marketing Jan 1
	TOURISM SALES ACTIVITY-Board Report 021722
	TOURISM SALES ACTIVITY-Board Report 021722.pdf
	2022 Soundside Event Site Calendar-Feb 22.pdf
	Feb 22


	Public Relations 



